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Reaching from the plains of the Great Central Valley to the Foothill Pine Belt, Angels Camp and Copperopolis share State Route 4, while State Route 49 trends north-south along the Mother Lode vein, connecting the gold mines along its route. (Map created by Laura Bowly.)



ON THE COVER: Angels Camp and Copperopolis were all about mining, and these Angels Camp miners appear to recognize this as they pose jauntily in front of the mill at the Utica Mine, to which no one except miners were granted admittance. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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Greenhorn Creek was named for the greenhorn miners who tried their luck in Greenhorn Gulch, only to be laughed at by the more seasoned miners. They had the last laugh, however, as rich pickings were discovered in the creek. The young lady at the falls in Greenhorn Gulch, now part of the Greenhorn Creek Golf Resort, was photographed about 1910. (Courtesy Calaveras County Archives.)
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Angels Camp, a town built on hills and underlain with mine tunnels, shares a 4-mile-long main street with Altaville. These townsfolk and their dogs gathered on Main Street in the 1890s when a visiting photographer came to town. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)






INTRODUCTION

The histories of Angels Camp and Copperopolis, as well as lesser-known communities in the southwest corner of Calaveras County, are typical of many towns in the California foothills, with their booms and busts, colorful characters, and almost century-long dependence on mining.

Although established on lands occupied for as many as 10,000 years by native peoples, the immigrants of the 19th century ushered in the modern era. The prosperity of the Angels Camp vicinity was first based upon the rich placer gold found along the Stanislaus River and in Coyote Creek, Carson Creek, and Angels Creek and its tributaries of China Gulch, Six Mile Creek, Cherokee Creek, Greenhorn Creek, and their drainages. For the Copperopolis area, its boom was launched with the discovery of copper ore in the 1860s, which helped support the efforts of the Union during the Civil War. Despite a great deal of gold prospecting, it was not until the 1880s that there was any appreciable amount of ore produced in that region.

Called the greatest mass migration in peacetime history, people from the eastern and midwestern United States, every country in Europe, Asia, Central and South America, Mexico, Canada, and Hawaii flocked to the gold fields. Even a little-known writer who went by the moniker Mark Twain took his turn at mining, only to find gold with a story later called “The Celebrated Jumping Frog of Calaveras County.”

The Mexicans, the first to arrive, were mostly driven out after the Foreign Miners Tax was enacted in 1852. The Chinese, however, provided the greatest number of immigrants in the 1860s and 1870s. Angels Camp’s Chinatown, with stores, gambling halls, opium dens, and gardens, was located along Angels Creek in the southern part of town. Always placer miners, the Chinese established other settlements at Six Mile Bar, Jenny Lind, and all along the Stanislaus River, Angels Creek, the Calaveras River, Littlejohns Creek, and elsewhere.

For thousands of years, Native Americans had traversed this land on routes connecting the Great Central Valley and the Sierra Nevada. Starting in the Gold Rush, those trails were improved into wagon and buggy roads, and the Angels Camp and Copperopolis areas became trading centers for neighboring mines and camps. In all directions from Angels Camp and Altaville would rise the communities of Vallecito, Dogtown, Washington Flat, Albany Flat, Carson Hill, Slab Ranch, and others. Copperopolis also had several satellite communities: Felix, O’Byrnes Ferry, Six Mile Bar, Hodson, Scorpion Gulch, Telegraph City, Napoleon City, and, in the 1870s, Milton, at the terminus of the Stockton and Copperopolis Railroad.

Many decades later, the primary west-east route would evolve into State Route 4, stretching from the San Francisco Bay Area to Markleeville east of the Sierra Nevada crest. North and south, another route—known as the San Andreas and Angels Camp Road, Angels Camp and Sonora Road, and other sobriquets—would become State Route 49, connecting towns along the Mother Lode vein from Mariposa to Auburn in the Southern Mines and extending through the Northern Mines to Downieville.

Close behind the prospectors and miners came the agriculturalists, mainly families who saw opportunities for stock-raising and truck garden operations. While the economy was wedded to the extraction of precious ores, the surrounding rolling hills and open grasslands produced sustenance for the hungry hoards of miners and their stock.

A few of the tent cities that emerged along the major strikes were not abandoned but were instead built up with one- and two-story frame commercial buildings lining their main streets. As these buildings were ravaged by fire many times in the early years, the more determined merchants rebuilt in stone and brick. By the mid-1850s in Angels Camp and Altaville, and the 1860s in Copperopolis, hotels, restaurants, dry-goods and grocery stores, liveries and stables, pharmacies and doctors’ offices, barbershops, and the ubiquitous saloons were established. Churches and fraternal lodges were erected, and schools served the growing population of children. Dwellings were constructed around the commercial core, with gardens and picket fences lending permanence to the settlements as they evolved into towns.

Water has always been a necessity for the extraction of ore, and by 1853, water for placer mining was brought into Angels Camp by the Union Water Company. Completed to Murphys in 1853, the system was extended to Washington Flat, Altaville, and Angels Camp that same year by utilizing the bed of Angels Creek. Over the ensuing years, the system was improved numerous times, especially after its acquisition by the Utica Gold Mining Company in the late 1880s.

To the west, Salt Spring Reservoir was completed in 1858 to provide water to the Brushville and Jenny Lind mining districts and was later expanded for use in the Royal, Mountain King, and other mines in the Madam Felix mining district. Reservoirs were constructed along Littlejohns Creek, and water was carried through ditches and riveted pipe to the diggings at Scorpion Gulch and later the Alto Mine. Mining camps and bars along the Stanislaus River turned that water into ditches and built wing dams to work the river beds, while smaller systems were constructed along every creek and drainage where ore was extracted or processed.

Perhaps surprisingly though, the period of greatest mining activity was not during that more colorful Gold Rush but rather the “Second Gold Rush,” which began in the 1880s. The consolidation of the mines, facilitated by advances in mining and milling technologies, and the availability of eastern United States and foreign capital combined to warrant large-scale underground mining.

A new wave of migration from southern Europe brought many into the area to work in the mining industry. Angels Camp, the center of industrial mining during the hard-rock boom, became home not only to miners from the eastern United States, England, Ireland, France, Germany, Finland, and Italy, but also the Slavic portions of the Austro-Hungarian Empire—both Croatians and Serbians. A crew of “100 Slavonians” built the road to the Stanislaus Electric Power Company Plant at Camp Nine in 1906–1907, while others labored underground. But mining has never been a consistent industry, and the Second Gold Rush ended with the advent of World War I.

Angels Camp became the county’s sole incorporated city in 1912 and gained world renown with its Jumping Frog Jubilee, which continues today. But Copperopolis dwindled, and other settlements became ghost towns. In the late 20th and early 21st century, however, the entire region has experienced a revival fed by a new mass migration—this time of those leaving urban areas for the country. The land they find holds within its borders a rich and fertile history.
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Salt Spring Valley lies between Gopher Ridge on the west and the monadnock (ancient mountain) of Bear Mountain on the east. In the center of the photograph are the ruins of the Royal Mill, which overlooked the pastoral landscape of the 1980s before the recent open-pit mining by Meridian Minerals, Inc. (Photograph by Alice Olmstead, courtesy Foothill Resources, Ltd.)






One

THE FIRST PEOPLE

A Mi-Wuk creation story tells how Coyote-man and Falcon flew over the countryside, planting three feathers at the places where they wanted villages to be established: one feather for Chá-kah, the chief; one for Mi’-yum, the woman chief; and one for Soo-la-too, the poor. The next day, each of the three feathers came to life, and the people lived in the places named by Coyote-man and Falcon.

Archaeologists also try to reconstruct how and when people first came to populate the landscape. One of the oldest sites in California is a 10,000-year-old village discovered in Salt Spring Valley, buried some 9 feet under the surface. Other ancient sites survive at Camp Nine on the Stanislaus River; Texas Charlie Gulch near old Reynolds Ferry; and on Black Creek near Highway 4. About 8,000 years ago, California’s climate warmed, reducing stream flows, evaporating small lakes, and driving the Alpine tree line higher. In the San Joaquin Valley, rising sea levels flooded the delta area, creating a vast and rich tidal marsh that supported large, wealthy villages.

Cooler weather returned, and the period from 4,000 to 1,000 years ago is called the “Golden Age” of prehistoric California. Foothill villages expanded, and traders regularly crossed the high Sierra, exchanging obsidian from the eastern slopes for shells and acorns from the west. About 1,000 years ago, the good times came to an abrupt end: many large villages were abandoned, desert rock art traditions ceased, trans-Sierran trade networks collapsed, and conflict and warfare increased. In the foothills, big villages gave way to smaller camps of several families that moved seasonally following available resources. Acorn processing intensified, and multiple—sometimes hundreds—of grinding stones have been found at single locations. The causes of these dramatic changes are likely related to a severe drought, increased population, shrinking resources, and introduction of the bow and arrow.

The greatest disaster was yet to come, however. With the discovery of gold in January 1848, the lives of California’s earliest residents changed forever. The tidal wave of miners that swept over the foothills drove away the game, muddied the streams, and introduced lethal diseases. Mi-Wuk survivors retreated to enclaves, and many of their descendants remain in the county today.
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Four of the oldest sites in California are located in Calaveras County’s southwest corner. The 10,000-year-old village site in Salt Spring Valley—named “Skyrocket” after an adjacent mining claim—contained hundreds of greenstone tools, milling stones, scraping and pounding implements made from cobbles, and the seeds of oak, grey pine, and wild cucumber. (Courtesy Julia Costello.)
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Archaeologists discovered long ago that artifact styles can change over time and have distinct periods of popularity. The arrowhead (center bottom) appeared in California about 1,200 years ago when the bow and arrow—invented on the East Coast—arrived. This new and deadly weapon upset power balances, causing widespread disruptions and conflicts. (Courtesy Far Western Anthropological Research Group.)
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A variety of grinding tools were used by prehistoric peoples. The low, curved grinding slabs were used at the most ancient sites and at smaller camps. Larger bowl mortars were first seen about 3,000 years ago, found at large village sites where families spent more time crafting utensils. Grinding holes carved in bedrock were not common until as recent as 1,000 years ago. (Courtesy Far Western Anthropological Research Group.)
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Petroglyphs (designs pecked or carved into rock surfaces) can be found throughout the Sierra Nevada foothills and are associated with the Mi-Wuk, Maidu, and Great Basin traditions. The designs pictured here are from an outcropping next to the river at Melones, carved through the reddish patina to let the lighter-color rock show through. Reproductions of petroglyphs at Horseshoe Bend are displayed at the Calaveras County Museum. (Courtesy U.S. Department of the Interior.)
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At the time of the Gold Rush, Mi-Wuk territory stretched from the edge of the San Joaquin Valley to the Sierra Nevada crest. This range provided all manner of foods, including seeds, berries, wild grapes, acorns, bulbs, greens and roots, mushrooms, nuts, fish, deer, rabbits, and birds, as well as medicinal plants. This rare depiction of Vallecito Mi-Wuk was made by Isaac W. Baker from sketches created in 1849–1850. (Courtesy Bancroft Library.)
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Six Mile Village, near Highway 4 east of Angels Camp, was occupied from about 1830 to 1930. It had both a roundhouse—said to be larger than the one at Murphys—and a dance house. This Six Mile resident and her son were photographed grinding acorns in a mortar (buried under the pile of flour) in 1898. (Photograph by W. H. Holmes, courtesy Smithsonian Institution.)
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Tillie and John Jeff, pictured above with two of their children, moved to Six Mile Village in 1909, joining her elderly relatives Old Mary and Jack Hardy, who were living there alone. Tillie, born in 1876 at Quartz Hill, near Vallecito, had been previously married to John Carson, by whom she had one son, Jim Ray. John Jeff was born in West Point around 1865. Upon moving to Six Mile Village, the couple built a house where they raised their nine children: Hettie, Laura, Manuel, Carrie, Ray, Hempy (“Hamby”), Lennie, Tessie, and Walter. The family gathered black oak acorns, seeds, and berries, and regularly took deer for meat. They also had two vegetable gardens at Six Mile where they grew beans, tomatoes, corn, and potatoes, and they purchased eggs, bacon, bread, flour, and milk from merchants in Vallecito. Their son Manuel Jeff recalls a trip to Camp Nine where they stayed for two weeks, catching and drying salmon. John died in Sonora in 1937 at age 72; Tillie was killed in an automobile accident in 1945 at age 69. Jeff family descendants still reside in West Point. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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John Jeff’s mother was a mayengo (chieftainess) from the village Kanusu and his father a maiyerrgot (chief) at West Point. John trained as a traditional sobobbe (drum major), learning the old songs and native ways from his father, “Indian Jeff,” his grandfather, and Pedro O’Connor. He constructed the dance house at Six Mile Village in 1910, which then served as the center of community ceremonies, storytelling, and social events. (Courtesy Loid Haig.)
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Ray Jeff, the son of John and Tillie Jeff, was born in 1915 at Six Mile Village. He served in World War II, winning the Silver Star, and died in that conflict in 1945. He is buried under a buckeye tree on the old Saunders Ranch near Vallecito with some 200 members of his tribe. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)






Two

STANISLAUS GOLD

The Stanislaus River has provided sustenance for Native Americans, gold for miners, and water for agriculture, urban development, and recreation. It is named for Estanislao Cucunuchi, who was born at San Jose Mission in 1800. At age 28, he led fellow Laquisemne Yokuts (from near Ripon) in a revolt, refusing to return from a holiday in their homeland. The horse-raiding rebels were pursued by Mariano Vallejo, but after a year, Estanislao turned himself in to his friend Father Narciso Durán and was pardoned. In addition to the Spanish and Mexican Californios, early visitors to Calaveras County included French trappers working for the Hudson’s Bay Company—locally headquartered at French Camp near Stockton—and the immigrant Bidwell-Bartleson group in 1841.

The discovery of gold in 1848 unleashed an invasion of miners and settlers that transformed the land. Mexicans from the state of Sonora were likely the first to mine for Stanislaus gold, although the first recorded mining described Native Americans working the river banks for Capt. Charles M. Weber in May or June 1848. During the early years of the Gold Rush, extensive placer mining and prospecting took place in nearly every ravine and gulch. Gold camps quickly sprang up and were just as rapidly abandoned when the ore played out. On the Stanislaus, mining communities at Six Mile Bar, Scorpion Gulch, O’Byrnes Ferry, Two Mile Bar, Bostwicks Bar, and Melones flourished and died. As the economy stabilized, many of the early mining centers developed into permanent towns, such as Knights Ferry, Angels Camp, and Altaville.

The most prosperous and long-lived Stanislaus River mining took place at Carson Hill. The earliest strikes were associated with a Mexican community called Melones, where nuggets were said to resemble melon seeds. The gold was first mined from quartz veins exposed at the top of Carson Hill, where a small settlement developed. By 1900, expansion included construction of a large mill alongside the river at Robinsons Ferry, and the new community was re-christened Melones. Enduring both declines and revivals, the largely abandoned ruins were finally covered by the waters of the New Melones Reservoir in 1980.
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During the early years, placer mining activities were carried out by individuals or small groups of miners using simple gold pans, bateas (shallow wooden bowls), sluice boxes, and rockers. Later, when the free gold had been picked up, miners formed companies who built Long Toms, elaborate wing dams, and flutter wheels, and who used inventive means to turn the rivers and expose nuggets in the stream beds. (Courtesy Oakland Museum.)
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Placer gold was discovered in Carson Creek in 1848 by James H. Carson, whose name was given to the creek, hill, and town. More importantly, in 1850, the quartz lode located on the top of Carson Hill was proven rich, and miners flooded in. In 1854, the Calaveras Nugget—the largest mass of gold found in the United States—was taken from the Comstock claim and weighed in at 195 pounds troy. (Courtesy Bancroft Library.)
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The Mexican miners on Carson Hill lived in their own settlement of Melones, described by Yankee visitors as dangerous and rowdy, featuring murders, fandangos, and gambling halls—accounts undoubtedly sensationalized. Whole families immigrated, and the main street was lined with brush houses and businesses. While the town only existed for about a year, its name survived in mining companies and reservoirs. (Drawing by J. D. Borthwick.)
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Arrastras, simple ore-grinding mechanisms, were introduced into California by experienced Mexican miners, and several were in use around Carson Hill. They were made out of local materials at little cost and were efficient in crushing quartz. When abandoned, the base stones were pulled up to retrieve gold dust that had filtered through the cracks. (Drawing from How We Get Gold In California by William Weeks.)
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The early homestead of Gabriel Stevenot, called the Melones Ranch, was located on the site of the Mexican town. Pictured here are, from left to right, Fred, Archie, Margret, Nellie, Sarah, Louis, Allie, and Marie Stevenot. (Photograph by Emile Stevenot, courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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The rich ore of Carson Hill lay largely untapped through the 1870s because of litigation, primitive technologies, and lack of financing. By 1888, a 20-stamp mill had been constructed by the English-financed Calaveras Consolidated Gold Mining Company, although it would be another decade before real development began. The few businesses of Carson Hill (also called Irvine) survived by supplying prospectors and pocket miners. (Courtesy Historic American Buildings Survey.)
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At the base of Carson Hill lay Robinsons Ferry, the important crossing founded in 1849 by John W. Robinson and Stephen Mead. It served travelers between Angels Camp and the booming towns of Columbia and Sonora, and thrived with the rich finds on Carson Hill. In this c. 1900 photograph, the two-story ferry house—saloon and lodging—is visible in the center. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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When Harvey Wood purchased Robinsons Ferry in 1860, the deed listed “ferry boats, rope, tackle, ferry house, out houses, bar, bar fixtures, liquors, provisions, and goods of every kind.” Pictured around 1890 on the porch of their home are Harvey and Marinda (seated to the right) and (on the left, standing, from left to right) Harvey’s brother James and sons Carlton and Percy; daughter Allie is seated to the left of two friends. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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Robinsons Ferry survived the decline of gold mining by serving local ranchers as well as travelers. At that time, Main Street ran along the river and led to Angels Camp by ascending Coyote Creek. Houses and businesses lining this thoroughfare included Manuel Airola’s store, captured in this rare 1870 image. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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The sleepy settlement of Robinsons Ferry changed drastically when the Melones Company purchased 16 recorded mining claims on Carson Hill and constructed its mill alongside the river at the east end of town. The company also changed the name of the town to Melones. This 1902 photograph shows the first 60 stamps in place with room for 40 more to the right; the large pipe carried water. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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Change in the town’s population is evident in the school’s population. This photograph, taken in 1911, shows a group of 41 students and their teacher (the man standing in the fifth row, far right) whose names reflect the diverse nature of the community. Old ranch families are represented by Whittakers and Airolas, while new households have arrived from Serbia and Italy. Overall, however, the population of the new mining town of Melones was similar to that of the Gold Rush days: the predominance of single male miners, the large number of foreign-born residents, the high rate of transiency, and the economic dependence on gold. The atmosphere was still more like that of a boomtown than a domestic community. (Both, courtesy West Whittaker.)
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The mining ventures at Melones were greatly assisted by the construction of the Sierra Railway’s branch line connecting Jamestown and Angels Camp. Although conceived by investors as a way to reach the vast timber reserves of the Sierra Nevada, the line also hauled supplies and ore for the mines. While the railway reached Jamestown in 1897, the terrain for the Angels Branch was formidable, and it was not until engineer W. H. Newell was hired that plans went forward. Crossing the 700-foot-deep chasm of the Stanislaus River required the use of five switchbacks, grades up to 4.15 percent, and 28-degree curves. The railway crossed the river on a 140-foot-long steel bridge, seen in this c. 1910 photograph (the trestle to the right rear is a water flume). Unexpected benefits of the route included spectacular views of the canyon, which caused awestruck passengers to name one vista “Gee Whiz Point.” (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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Progress at Melones included the replacement of the old ferry with a toll-free modern bridge, seen here soon after its completion in 1909. The crew constructing the bridge was housed in the adjacent ferry building, and ironically, a workman’s cigarette burned the building to the ground. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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Harvey Wood’s son Percy had seen ferry profits decline following the construction of the Sierra Railway, and in 1904, he declined to renew the concession. Modernizing, he opened the only gas station in town, seen here in about 1930. Thus, the Wood family remained in the transportation business. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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The transition of Robinsons Ferry into the mining town of Melones began when the Melones Mining Company decided to attack the ore body of Carson Hill from below. Driving a 4,500-foot-long adit into the mountain, workers then sank a 3,000-foot shaft into the adit, connecting the old mining workings. Ore was then removed by gravity to the riverside mill, seen on the right in this photograph, and water was readily available. Waste rock piled outside of the main portal is



[image: e9781439620892_i0031.jpg]

the large white hill adjacent to the mill. Bunk houses for the miners are visible to the left of the mill along the river. This first mill closed in 1919, replaced by the new 30-stamp mill of Carson Hill Gold Mines, Inc., seen here on the west end of town near the bridge. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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The 30-stamp mill closed in 1926, and Melones seemed nearly deserted after three decades of mining development. However, with an increase in the price of gold, the company reorganized into the Carson Hill Gold Mining Company, and in September 1933, the renovated mine and mill reopened. The photograph above shows attendees’ cars parked along the riverbank and a new bridge spanning the Stanislaus. For the festivities, the Angels Camp band played, and child movie star Jackie Cooper, seen in this photograph at left, threw the switch to start the stamps pounding, signaling a return of prosperity to Melones.

Also in the photograph at left are, from left to right, managing director John W. Burgess, Lawrence Monte Verda, two unidentified, Sol Grossbard, and Charles Segerstrom. (Above, courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society; left, courtesy Holt-Atherton Library, University of the Pacific.)
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The concentrating tables of the Carson Hill Gold Mining Company mill are seen here processing ore that has been crushed in the stamps. Various chemicals are added to the “pulp” to help recover the gold. (Courtesy Mary Etta Segerstrom.)
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Other changes were taking place along the Stanislaus River. In 1926, the Melones dam was constructed between the old Reynolds and O’Byrnes Ferry crossings, flooding the river canyon upstream as far as the town of the same name. (Courtesy Pomona Public Library.)
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Nine years after it opened, the Carson Hill Mining Company mill burned down in a fire, its remains seen to the left in the photograph above. The flat water of the river is the upper reaches of the Melones reservoir, and the white, flat hill in the background is the tailings pile from cyanide processing used to recover gold. (Courtesy Calaveras County Historical Society.)
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In 1962, Congress approved construction of the New Melones dam, and by 1981, the waters of the Stanislaus River were stilled for some 15 miles. However, under 350 feet of water lie remnants of the mines, ranches, homes, and these abandoned bridges that once served the riverside community of Melones. (Photograph by Julia Costello.)
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REWARD!

WELLS, FARGO & CO0.’S EXPRESS BOX, CON-

taining $160 in Gold Notes, was robbed this morning, by one man, on the route from Sonora
to Milton, near top of the Hill, between the river and Copperopolis.

And one-fourth of any money recovered, will be paid
for arrest and conviction of the robber.
\ JOHN J. VALENTINE,

General Sup't.

 TUOLUMNE INDEPENDENT PRINT. _

o

San Francisco, J;z; 27, 1875.
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